CONTRACT

Between

TOWN OF GUTTENBERG

And

TEAMSTERS LOCAL NO. 11

January 1, 2018 - December 31, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article 1.	Recognition	2
Article 2.	Check-Off Union Dues	3,4
Article 3.	Hours of Work and Overtime	5
Article 4.	Grievance Procedure	6, 7
Article 5.	Probationary Period	8
Article 6.	Job Vacancies, New Jobs Created	8
Article 7.	Payroll and Seniority	9
Article 8.	Holidays	9,10
Article 9.	Vacations	11
Article 10.	Leaves	12,13
Article 11.	Veteran's Rights and Benefits	13
Article 12.	General	14,15
Article 13.	Discharge	15
Article 14.	Classification and Wage Rates	15,16
Article 15.	Management Rights	16,17
Article 16.	Health Benefits	17
Article 17.	Family and Medical Leave Benefits	18,19
	General Procedures	20,21
Article 18.	Duration of Agreement	22
	Signature Page	22

THIS AGREEMENT made on this 30% day of Tanuth , 20/8, by and between the TOWN OF GUTTENBERG, located at 6808 Park Avenue, Guttenberg, New Jersey, hereinafter referred to as the "EMPLOYER", and TEAMSTERS LOCAL NO. 11, a labor organization, with its principal place of business at 810 Belmont Avenue, Suite 101, North Haledon, New Jersey, hereinafter referred to as the "UNION".

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Union has presented proof that it represents all Laborers, (full time and part time), Bus Operators (full time), Custodians (part time), Park Care Keepers (seasonal and part time) excluding all office, clerical, supervisory employees, and all others, and

WHEREAS, the Town of Guttenberg by virtue thereof, has recognized the said Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all Laborers, full time and part time, Bus Operators (full time), Custodians (part time), Park Care Keepers (seasonal and part time) excluding all office, clerical, supervisory employees, and all others of the Town of Guttenberg.

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed between the parties hereto as follows:

ARTICLE 1- RECOGNITION

<u>Section 1.</u> The Town of Guttenberg hereby recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for all employees now employed or to be employed as Laborers, full time and part time, Bus Operators (full time), Custodians (part time), Park Care Keepers (seasonal and part time) excluding managerial executives, confidential employees and supervisors within the meaning of the Act, police and fire employees, craft employees, professional employees, employees in other negotiation units and all other employees employed by the Town of Guttenberg.

<u>Section 2.</u> The bargaining unit shall consist of all Laborers (full time and part time), bus operators, (full-time), custodians (part-time), Park Care Keepers (seasonal and part-time), excluding all office, clerical and supervisory employees, and all other employees of the Town of Guttenberg. Summer seasonal employees shall not be in the bargaining unit.

<u>Section 3.</u> Wherever used herein the term "Employees" shall mean and be construed only as referring to the Laborers, Full Time and Part Time.

ARTICLE 2-CHECK-OFF OF UNION DUES

Section 1(a). The Employer hereby agrees to deduct from wages of employees by means of a check-off the dues uniformly required by the labor organization pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 2:14-15.9E. The Employer, after receipt of written authorization from each individual employee, agrees to deduct from the salaries of said employees their monthly dues and initiation fees. Such deductions shall be made from the second salary paid to each employee during the month and such deduction made the first month shall be a double deduction and thereafter the regular deduction shall apply to dues owed for the following month.

<u>Section 1(b)</u>. In making the deductions and transmittals as above specified, the Employer shall rely upon the most recent communication from the Union as to the amount of monthly dues and proper amount of initiation fee. The total amount deducted shall be paid to the Union within fifteen (15) calendar days after such deduction is made.

Section 2. Representation Fee

- a. If an employee does not become a member of the Union during any membership year (from January 1st to the following December 1st) which is covered in whole or in part by this Agreement, said employee will be required to pay a Representation Fee to the Union for that membership year. The purpose of this fee will be to offset the employee's per capita cost of services rendered by the Union as majority representative.
- b. Prior to the beginning of each membership year, the Union will notify the Employer, in writing, of the amount of the regular membership dues, initiation fees and assessments charged by the Union to its own members for that membership year. The Representation Fee to be paid by non-members will be equal to 85% of that amount.

In order to adequately offset the per capita cost of services rendered by the Union as majority representative, the Representative Fee should be equal in amount to the regular membership dues, initiation fees and assessments charged by the Union to its own members, and the Representation Fee has been set at 85% of that amount.

c1. Once during each membership year covered in whole or in part by this Agreement, the Union will submit to the Employer a list of those employees who have not become members of the Union for the then current membership year. The Employer will deduct from the salaries of such employees, in accordance with paragraph 2 below, the full amount of the Representation Fee and promptly will transmit the amount so deducted to the Union.

- c2. The Employer will deduct the Representation Fee in equal installments, as nearly as possible, from the pay checks paid to each employee on the aforesaid list during the remainder of the membership year in question. The deductions will begin with the first pay check paid:
 - a. Ten (10) days after receipt of the aforesaid list by the Employer; or
- b. Thirty (30) days after the employee begins his or her employment in a bargaining unit position, unless the employee previously served in a bargaining unit position and continued in the employ of the Employer in a non-bargaining unit position or was on layoff, in which event the deductions will begin with the first pay check paid ten (10) days after the resumption of the employee's employment in a bargaining unit position, whichever is later.
- c3. If an employee who is required to pay a Representation Fee terminates his or her employment with the Employer before the Union has received the full amount of the Representation Fee to which it is entitled under this Article, the Employer will deduct the unpaid portion of the fee from the last pay check paid to said employee during the membership year in question.
- c4. Except as otherwise provided in this Article, the mechanics for the deduction of Representation Fees and the transmission of such fees to the Union will, as nearly as possible, be the same as those used for the deduction and transmission of regular membership dues to the Union.
- c5. The Union will notify the Employer, in writing, of any changes in the list provided for in paragraph 1 above and/or the amount of the Representation Fee, and such changes will be reflected in any deductions made more than ten (10) days after the Employer received said notice.
- c6. On or about the last day of each month beginning with the month this Agreement becomes effective, the Employer will submit to the Union a list of all employees who began their employment in a bargaining unit position during the preceding thirty (30) day period. The list will include names, job titles and dates of employment for all such employees. The Employer further agrees to notify the Union in the event dues for an employee cannot be deducted from the designated salary and the reason thereof.
- c7. Teamsters, Local 11 shall establish and maintain at all times a demand and return system as provided by N.J.S.A. 34-13A-5.5(c) and 5.6, and membership in Teamsters, Local 11 shall be available to all employees in the unit on an equal basis at all times. In the event Teamsters, Local 11 fails to maintain such a system, or if membership is not so available, the Employer shall immediately cease making such deductions.

ARTICLE 3-HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

<u>Section 1.</u> The normal work week for full time employees shall be five (5) days of eight (8) hours each day inclusive of a 30-minute paid lunch. For employees on staff as of the date of the Agreement the flex work week would be Monday to Saturday. For employees hired after the date of execution of this Agreement, the flex week will be Monday through Sunday.

If the flex work week is instituted, volunteers would be requested; involuntary assignment would be reverse seniority. All time worked on a sixth and/or seventh consecutive work day should be paid at time and one-half even if the total hours of work for those six (6) or seven (7) consecutive days is less than forty (40) hours.

Section 2. Overtime shall be all hours worked over forty (40) hours of work in a calendar week and shall be paid at time and one-half (1 $\frac{1}{2}$). The employees shall receive one paid fifteen-minute coffee break in the morning and one paid fifteen-minute break in the afternoon.

<u>Section 3.</u> Recognizing the size of the bargaining unit and the past practice, management non-unit employees may perform bargaining unit work. This shall not exceed three non-unit employees.

Section 4. Employees who are recalled to work shall be guaranteed two (2) hours of work.

ARTICLE 4-GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

<u>Section 1.</u> A grievance shall be a claim made by an employee that said employee has been harmed by the interpretation or application of this Agreement.

<u>Section 2.</u> A grievance to be considered under this procedure must be initiated in writing within ten (10) calendar days from the time when the cause for grievance occurred, and the procedure following shall be resorted to as the sole means of obtaining adjustment of the grievance. (If the grievance is unanswered by Management within the time limits, it is assumed that the grievance is denied and the Union has the absolute right to proceed to the next step).

Section 3. Procedure

- a. Failure to any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance within the specified time limits shall permit the grievant to proceed to the next step. Failure at any step of this procedure to appeal a grievance to the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be a waiver of further appeal of the decision. (If the grievance is unanswered by Management within the time limits, it is assumed that the grievance is denied and the Union has the absolute right to proceed to the next step).
- b. The grievance, when it first arises, shall be taken up orally between the employee, the Shop Steward, and the Supervisor. The Supervisor shall within ten (10) working days thereafter give an oral or written decision on the grievance. (If the grievance is unanswered by Management within the time limits, it is assumed that the grievance is denied and the Union has the absolute right to proceed to the next step).
- c. If no satisfactory settlement is reached during the first informal conference, then such grievance shall be reduced to writing and the Shop Steward shall serve the same upon the Employer. Within three (3) working days thereafter, the grievance shall be discussed between the Director of the respective Department involved and a representative of the Union. A written decision shall be given to the Union within three (3) working days thereafter. (If the grievance is unanswered by Management within the time limits, it is assumed that the grievance is denied and the Union has the absolute right to proceed to the next step).
- d. If the decision given by the Director of the respective Department involved to the Union does not satisfactorily satisfy the grievance, the Union shall notify the Business Administrator, within three (3) working days thereafter. (If the grievance is unanswered by Management within the time limits, it is assumed that the grievance is denied and the Union has the absolute right to proceed to the next step).

e. In the event the grievance is not satisfactorily settled by the meeting between the respective Department Head and the representative of the Union, then both parties agree that within ten (10) calendar days either party may request the Public Employment Relations Commission to aid them in the selection of an Arbitrator, according to the rules and regulations of the Board, who shall have full power to hear and determine the dispute and the Arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding.

<u>Section 4.</u> The arbitrator shall have no authority to change, modify, substitute, add to, or subtract from the provisions of this Agreement. No dispute arising out of any questions pertaining to the renewal of this Agreement shall be subject to the arbitration provisions of this Agreement. Attendance at arbitration hearings shall be limited to parties that have a direct interest in the outcome of said hearing, such as witnesses and major representatives of each party.

The annual decision to appoint or not reappoint an employee shall be the sole and absolute discretion of the Town. The annual decision to not reappoint an employee shall not be subject to arbitration; if the law changes to permit arbitration, the Union shall have the right to reopen negotiations on this point to negotiate the right to submit to arbitration the decision to not reappoint employees who have ten (10) years or more of employment with the Town.

<u>Section 5</u>. The cost of the arbitration, other than the costs incurred individually by the parties in preparation and presentation of their case to the arbitrator, shall be shared equally by the Employer and the Union.

ARTICLE 5-PROBATIONARY PERIOD

Section 1. The first ninety (90) days of employment for all new employees shall be considered a probationary period. Effective upon execution of this Agreement, the starting salary for new employees shall be as set forth in the salary schedule set forth in Article 14 of this Agreement. After successful completion of the probationary period, the employees date of hire shall be used for all purposes except for salary shall be based on the salary schedule set forth in Article 14.

<u>Section 2.</u> During the aforementioned probationary period, the Employer may discharge such employee for any reason whatsoever. An employee discharged during this probationary period shall not have recourse to the Grievance Procedure as set forth in this Agreement. The Employer shall have no responsibility for the re-employment of newly engaged probationary employees if they are dismissed during the probationary period.

ARTICLE 6-JOB VACANCIES, NEW JOBS CREATED

Section 1. The Employer shall establish the hourly rate for any new or materially changed job and shall notify the Union in writing. If the Union files a written protest, the Union and the Employer shall jointly study the new or changed job title and its relationship to the other job titles in the Employer's system on the basis of factors and procedures customarily used in job evaluation programs and shall determine the appropriate hourly wage rate accordingly.

<u>Section 2.</u> If a new job is created pursuant to Section 1, it shall be posted for at least two (2) weeks and employees may apply.

ARTICLE 7-PAYROLL AND SENIORITY

<u>Section 1.</u> Employer reserves the right to modify the payroll program including but not limited to the institution of a two-week payroll schedule provided all other Town employees are paid on this schedule. If the Employer modifies the payroll program, Employees and the Union shall be given not less than thirty (30) calendar days' prior notice before the implementation of such program.

<u>Section 2.</u> The Employer shall establish and maintain a seniority list of employees, names and dates of employment from date of last hire with employee with the longest length of continuous and uninterrupted service to be placed at the top of said seniority list. The names of all employees with shorter length of continuous service shall follow the name of each senior employee, in order, until the name of the employee with the shortest length of service appears at the end of the list. The seniority list of each employee shall date from the employee's date of last hiring by the Employer.

ARTICLE 8-HOLIDAYS

<u>Section 1.</u> The Employer guarantees to all Department of Public Works and Bus Operators (full-time) bargaining members, the following holidays with pay at the employee's regular straight time rate of pay, though no work is performed on such days. Custodians (part-time) and Park Care Keepers (seasonal and part-time) shall not be entitled to any holidays.

Effective January 1, 2018, the holidays shall be as follows:

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King Jr's Birthday
President's Day
Good Friday
Memorial Day
Independence Day
Labor Day

Columbus Day
Presidential Election Day
Veteran's Day
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving

Christmas Day Employee's Birthday

Any employee shall be required to work the work day before the holiday and the work day after the holiday to be eligible for holiday pay; failure to meet this condition shall result in forfeiture of the holiday pay.

Section 2. If a holiday falls on Saturday, the Holiday will be celebrated on Friday. If a Holiday falls on Sunday, the Holiday will be celebrated on Monday.

<u>Section 3.</u> If a holiday falls within the vacation period of any employee, the employee shall receive pay for same or an additional day of vacation at the discretion of the Employer. If the employee is required to forfeit such holiday falling within a vacation period, the said employee shall have the right upon adequate notice to the Employer, to refuse the holiday pay and to take a work day off, not during said employee's vacation period, nor the day before or the day after a holiday and suffer no loss in pay.

<u>Section 4.</u> Holidays will be celebrated on the day designated for observation by the Township holiday schedule published every year and distributed to all departments. Any premium pay for work on a holiday will be for work on the Observance Day.

Section 5. All hours worked on a Holiday shall be compensated at double rate time.

ARTICLE 9-VACATIONS

<u>Section 1.</u> The Employer agrees to grant all employees within the Departments of Public Works and Bus Operators bargaining members, vacations with pay in accordance with the following schedules in each year of this Agreement. The Custodian (part-time) and Park Care Keeper (seasonal and part-time) shall not be entitled to any vacation.

LENGTH OF SERVICE

	11101111011
After one (1) year	One (1) week
After two (2) years	Two (2) weeks
After five (5) years	Three (3) weeks
After ten (10) years	Four (4) weeks
After twenty-five (25) years	Five (5) weeks

VACATION

Any employee who becomes eligible for an increase in vacation allowance after January 1, 2014, shall have the increased vacation allowance prorated based on the employee's anniversary date in the year of such increase.

<u>Section 2.</u> The Employer agrees that in the event an employee voluntarily leaves the employ of the Employer before the vacation period, the employee shall be compensated for any accrued vacation time that may be due said employee in accordance with the above schedule.

Section 3. Vacations shall be scheduled in accordance with past practice, provided that no employee may request more than two (2) consecutive weeks of vacation at any one time. The number of employees scheduled to be off on vacation at any one time shall not exceed two (2). However, for the period of March 1, 2018 through October 31, 2018, of each year of the agreement, the number of employees scheduled to be off on vacation shall not exceed three (3). Prior to March 1, 2018 and after October 31, 2018 of each year of this agreement, the remaining provisions of this section shall apply and the number of employees scheduled to be off on vacation at any one time shall not exceed two (2).

<u>Section 4.</u> Vacation shall not be carried over from one year to the next year. Vacation not taken in the year earned shall be forfeited.

ARTICLE 10-LEAVES

Section 1. Paid Sick Leave

- a. After completion of probation, an employee shall be entitled to fifteen (15) days paid sick leave each year. Unused sick leave shall not be cumulatively from year to year. Members will be able to bank only five (5) unused sick time non-commutatively. The Bus Operators (full-time) shall receive the same amount of sick leave as the Department of Public Works Employees. The Parks Care Keeper (seasonal and part-time) and Custodian (part-time) shall not receive this benefit.
- b. The Operations Manager or his designee may request at any time a physician designated by the Employer to determine sick time certification. All costs for said examination shall be borne by the Township. Proof of illness shall be defined to be a statement from a physician including the nature of the illness and a prognosis for recovery. If the Director determines a suspected abusive request for sick leave exists, the Director shall have the right to demand a physician's certification of illness at any time from the employee's physician at the employee's expense. Refusal to comply with such a request will subject the employee to disciplinary action.

Section 2. Work Related Illness or Injury

a. The Employer shall provide coverage for all employees covered by this Agreement under the Worker's Compensation Law.

Section 3. Bereavement Leave Pay Employees will be granted three (3) days off with pay at the employee's straight time rate in the event of death of the employee's spouse, child, and three (3) days in the event of the death of any other member of the immediate family defined as parent, parent-in-law, child, sister or brother, spouse, grandparents, brother-in-law, sister-in-law or other members residing in the employee's household. The Employer reserves the right to verify the legal relationship of the family member of the employee. Bereavement Leave shall be used at the time of the death of the person provided in this section, the Town in its discretion may waive this requirement in the case of travel to another country for a memorial service.

<u>Section 4.</u> <u>Jury Duty</u> An employee who is called for Jury Duty shall be paid seven (7) hours straight time for scheduled working time lost; however, the employee shall be required to give prior notice to the Employer of said employee's call for Jury Duty.

<u>Section 5.</u> <u>Maternity Leave</u> Maternity leave shall be granted pursuant to Township wide policy and Federal Law.

Section 6. Personal Days All employees in the Public Works Department and Bus Operators (full-time) shall be entitled to one (1) personal day each contract year. The Custodian (part-time) shall also receive one personal days each contract year. The procedure for requesting and taking the day shall be consistent with all other Town employees. The day shall not be cumulative and shall be lost if not used by the end of the year.

<u>Section 7.</u> <u>Military Leave</u> The Town agrees to provide military leave(s) pursuant to all applicable Federal and State statutes and regulations.

ARTICLE 11-VETERAN'S RIGHTS AND BENEFITS

<u>Section 1.</u> The seniority rights of all employees who enlist or who are draft pursuant to an appropriate law now in force or to be enacted, shall be maintained during such period of military service. Each such employee shall have the right of reinstatement to the former position held or to a position of equal status, at the salary rate previously received by the employee at the time of said employee's induction into military service, together with all salary increases granted by the Employer to said employee's previous position during the period of such military service.

<u>Section 2.</u> Such reinstatement of veterans shall be upon application therefore made within ninety (90) days after such an employee is honorably discharged from service. This clause shall be subject to all pertinent and applicable provisions of the Selective Training and Service Act, as amended.

<u>Section 3.</u> The Employer agrees to allow the necessary time for any employee in the Reserves to perform the duties required when called without impairment of said employee's seniority rights and shall pay the difference between such service pay and seven (7) hours straight time for scheduled working time lost.

<u>Section 4.</u> The Employer agrees to pay an employee for all reasonable time involved in reporting for a physical examination for military service.

ARTICLE 12-GENERAL

- <u>Section 1.</u> <u>Non-Discrimination</u> It is agreed that the parties hereto will continue their practice of not discriminating against any employee because of race, color, creed, religion, nationality, sex or age, and further, that no employee shall be discriminated against or interfered with because of legal Union activities.
- <u>Section 2.</u> No employee shall make or be requested to make any agreement or enter into any understanding inconsistent or conflicting with the terms of this Agreement.
- <u>Section 3.</u> The Employer shall provide reasonable bulletin board space for the posting of official Union notices.
- <u>Section 4.</u> If any provision of this Agreement shall be found to be contrary to law, that portion of the provision shall be considered void, but all other provisions and portions of the provision not voided shall continue to be in full force and effect.
- <u>Section 5.</u> This Agreement incorporates the entire understanding of the parties on all maters which were or could have been subject to negotiations. During the term of this Agreement neither party shall be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter whether or not covered by the Agreement, and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or executed this Agreement.
- <u>Section 6.</u> This Agreement shall not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing duly executed by representatives of Local 11 and the Town of Guttenberg.
- $\underline{\text{Section 7.}}$ The Employer shall provide each employee with the following at no cost to the employee:
 - Work gloves as needed.
- b. Any other protective clothing or equipment which in the opinion of the Employer is necessary to perform the job.
 - c. Shields or goggles, prescription type, if necessary.
- d. It is mandatory to wear a safety vest; failure to wear the safety vest may subject the employee to disciplinary action.
- e. Effective January 1, 2018, The Town shall pay \$150.00 in each year of the Contract to an employee for the purchase of work boots. Upon submission of proof of

purchase. Work boots which shall be worn by the employee during work hours.

f. Summer clothes shall be distributed by May 15^{th} , winter clothes shall be distributed by November 15^{th} , barring any circumstances beyond the employer's control.

Section 8. Unless specifically provided as retroactive, all terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be effective on the date of the execution by the Union and the Town. With respect to salary increases, retroactive payments shall only be made to those employees who are still in the active employ of the Town. Only employees who are in the active employ of the Town on the date of the execution of this Agreement shall receive retroactive salary payments if they are so entitled. Individuals who have severed their employment status by resignation, retirement, death, termination, layoff, or any other reason shall not be eligible and shall not receive retroactive salary payments.

<u>Section 9.</u> If any employee with a CDL license drives a Senior Citizen bus, he/she shall be paid, for all time driving the bus, the hourly rate of the regular driver. This rate shall not in addition to the Union employee's hourly rate, but in lieu of same for all time spent as a driver.

ARTICLE 13-DISCHARGE

An employee shall not be discharged except for just and sufficient cause, except that newly engaged employees on probation shall be subject to dismissal for any cause whatsoever. The Union shall be notified of the discharge of any employee, except a probationary employee, at the time of such discharge and such notification shall set forth the reason for said discharge.

ARTICLE 14-CLASSIFICATION AND WAGE RATES

Section 1.

a. The following classification and wage rates are applicable to all Public Works Department employees, Bus Operators, Parks Care Keeper (seasonal and part-time) and Custodians (part-time).

b. Effective January 1, 2018, the base pay shall be increased 1.5% Effective January 1, 2019, the base pay shall be increased 1.5% Effective January 1, 2020, the base pay shall be increased 2.0% Effective January 1, 2021, the base pay shall be increased 2.0% Effective January 1, 2022, the base pay shall be increased 2.0%

Attached is a salary guide and step placement schedule for current employees.

Employees on staff as of the date of execution of this Agreement shall be paid in accordance with the salary schedules set forth as in Appendix A of this Agreement, retroactive to January 1, 2018.

Upon execution of this Agreement, the following employees shall receive a one-time wage adjustment, which shall not be added to the base salary and shall not be pensionable, of \$1,250.00; Alexander Heupel, Jr. and Philip Lauler.

ARTICLE 15-MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

<u>Section 1.</u> The Town hereby retains and reserves unto itself without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it prior to the signing of this Agreement by the Laws and Constitution of the State of New Jersey and of the United States, including but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following rights:

- a. To the executive management and administrative control of the Township and its properties and facilities and the activities of its employees.
- b. To hire all employees and subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications and conditions for continued employment or assignment; and to promote and transfer employees subject to the posting and bidding procedures of this contract.
- c. To suspend, demote, discharge or take other disciplinary action for good and just cause according to law, and in keeping with the negotiated and agreed to terms and conditions of this contract.
- <u>Section 2.</u> The exercises of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities of the Township, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only by the specific and express terms hereof.
- <u>Section 3.</u> Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict the Township, its powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities under state, county or local laws or ordinances.
- <u>Section 4.</u> The Town retains the right to establish work rules and disciplinary procedures not inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement.
- <u>Section 5.</u> No lockout of employees shall be instituted by the Municipal Employer during the terms of this Agreement. The Union agrees that during the terms of this

Agreement, neither the Union nor its officers, employees or members will engage in, encourage, sanction, support or suggest any strikes, work stoppages, boycotts, slowdowns, mass resignations, mass absenteeism, picketing or any other similar actions which would involve the suspension of, or interference with the normal work of the Municipality. In the event that Union members participate in such activities in violation of this provision, the Union shall notify those members so engaged to cease and desist from such activities and shall notify those members so engaged to ceases and desist from such activities and shall instruct the members to return to their normal duties. Any employee participating in these prohibited activities may be disciplined by the Municipal Employer.

<u>Section 6.</u> The Town retains the right to assign employees to such work as is appropriate by the Operations Manager or the Director's Designate. It is understood that the purpose of this section is to continue the flexibility of the Employer in providing job assignments.

ARTICLE 16-HEALTH BENEFITS

Section 1. Chapter 78 - S.H.B.P. (State Health Benefit Plan).

The Town will provide coverage for each member and the member's dependents utilizing the State Health Benefits Program (SHBP) and shall offer all plans to members of this unit as permitted by SHBP or an equal or better plan at the Town's option. The Town will provide the optional SHBP prescription drug program or an equal or better plan to the members of this unit.

The Town will maintain a dental program equivalent to the coverage provided other municipal employees.

Section 2. The Town shall cover each full-time employee after the first ninety (90) days of employment. The minimum number of hours to be worked to be eligible for health benefits shall be as provided for by the statute and/or regulation. (At the time of execution of this Agreement, the minimum hours required to be eligible for health benefits is thirty (30) hours per week.

<u>Section 3.</u> The Town reserves the right to change insurance carriers provided it is equal to the above-mentioned benefits.

Section 4. Hospitalization benefits for retirees shall be as currently set forth in Town Ordinance 076-95, adopted by the Town, July 19, 1995, as same may be amended by resolution of the Town Council.

Section 5. Employees are responsible for the contribution per pay period for health and

prescription coverages as required by the state of New Jersey.

ARTICLE 17-FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE BENEFITS

<u>Section 1.</u> Leave entitlement under the Federal Family and Medical Leave (FMLA) shall be granted to all Department of Public Works Employees, Bus Operators, Parks Care Keeper (seasonal and part-time), and Custodians (part-time) as follows:

Definitions:

- Serious health condition: Condition requiring inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential medical facility or continuing treatment by a "health care provider".
- ii. Health care provider:

 A doctor or medicine or osteopathy who is authorized to practice medicine or surgery by the State in which the doctor practices or any other person licensed under federal state or local laws to provide health care services.
- ii. Family member: Spouse, child, parent (includes biological, adoptive, stepparents, parents-in-law)
- iv. "12-month period": The 12-month period is measured forward from the date an employee's first family or medical leave begins.
- v. Intermittent Leave:
 A non-consecutive leave comprised of intervals each of which is at least one but less than twelve weeks within a consecutive twelve month period for each single serious health condition.
- vi. Reduced Leave:

 A non-consecutive leave of up to the equivalent of twelve weeks that is taken in increments of less than one full week at a time, but not less than one workday, unless the Town and employee agree to a shortened workday. An employee is only allowed to take one reduced leave schedule within a twelve-month period. An employee is entitled to take reduced leave for the serious medical condition of a family member, but the employee and the Town must agree to reduced leave for the birth or adoption of a child.

- <u>Section 2.</u> Employees may be entitled to family or medical leave for the following:
 - i. Care of the employee's newborn child;
 - ii. Placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care;
 - iii. Care for family member with a serious health condition:
- iv. A serious health condition which prevents the employee from working or performing the essential functions of the job.
- Section 3. An employee is eligible for family and medical leave if he/she has worked 12 months for the Town and at least 1,000 hours, excluding overtime, during the preceding 12 months.
- <u>Section 4.</u> An employee is entitled to a total of 12 weeks in a consecutive 12-month period for all family and medical leaves combined.
- <u>Section 5.</u> Leave taken for the birth, adoption or placement of a child must be taken within the first year of birth, adoption or placement, and normally in one continuous period of up to 12 weeks.
- Section 6. Family or medical leave shall be unpaid unless the employee elects to use accrued paid leave, such as vacation or sick leave, for some or all of the family or medical leave period. Paid leave substituted for unpaid family or medical leave, may be counted against the 12-week leave entitlement if the employee is notified in writing of the designation when the leave begins.
- <u>Section 7.</u> The fact that a holiday may occur within the work week taken by an employee as Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) has no effect and the week is counted as a week of FMLA.
- <u>Section 8.</u> The Town will maintain coverage under any group health insurance policy, group subscriber contract, or health care plan at the level and under the conditions coverage would have been provided if the employee had not been absent on family leave.
- <u>Section 9.</u> At the end of an approved leave, the employee shall be entitled to the position he or she held when leave commenced or to a similar position, full-time or part-time, except as his or her entitlement to a position may have been affected by a reduction in force.

GENERAL PROCEDURES

- 1. All requests for leave made necessary by the serious health condition of the employee or of the employee's family member shall be applied for in writing not less than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the commencement date requested by the employee. The Town's response to such requests shall also be in writing.
- 2. All request for leave due to birth or adoption shall be applied for in writing not less than thirty (30) days prior to the commencement date requested by the employee. The Town's response to such request shall also be in writing.
- 3. In the event of emergencies, the employee shall give reasonable and practicable notice.
- 4. Health Care Certification:
 - i. Employees must submit medical certification from the attending health care provider that includes the date the condition began; probable duration; medical facts regarding the condition and either a) a statement indicating that the employee is needed to give care and the amount of time for which it is needed or b) a statement that the employee is unable to perform the functions of his/her position. A medical certification is required within thirty (30) calendar days after the date the employee provides notice of the need for leave.
 - ii. A second opinion may be obtained at the Town's expense if there is reason to doubt the validity of a provider's certification. If the opinion differs, a third and final opinion may be obtained from a mutually acceptable provider, at the Town's request.
 - iii. The Town may require additional certification every thirty (30) days or more frequently where an employee asks for extension.
- 5. The Town shall designate leave taken for FMLA or NJFLA reason as such. The designation must be based on the information furnished by the employee. Leave may not be designated as FMLA or NJFLA leave after the leave has been completed and the employee has returned to work except if:
 - i. The Town is awaiting receipt of the medical certification to confirm the existence of a serious health condition.
 - ii. The Town was unaware that leave was for FMLA or NJFLA reason, and subsequently acquires information from the employee such as when the employee

requests additional or extensions of leave; or,

- iii. The Town was unaware that the leave was for FMLA or NJFLA reason, and the employee notifies the employer within two (2) days after return to work that the leave was FMLA or NJFLA leave.
- 6. In the event that the Town was not aware of the reason for the leave, the leave may be designated as NJFLA or FMLA leave retroactively only while the leave is in progress or within two (2) business days of the employee's return to work.

ARTICLE 18. DURATION OF AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT shall be for a term of five (5) years commencing on January 1, 2018 and terminating on December 31, 2022. This Agreement shall be automatically renewed from year to year thereafter, unless either party gives notice, in writing, to the other at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration date of the Agreement, or the expiration date of any renewal period, of its intention to change, modify or terminate this Agreement. Where such notice is given, negotiations for a new Agreement shall begin promptly, but not sooner than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the then current period and shall continue until a new Agreement is reached. During such negotiations, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day and year first written.

TOWN OF GUTTENBERG

TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL 11

Honorable Wayne Zitt, Mayor

Michael Curcio, Fresident

Elizabeth Williamson, Secretary Treasures

ATTEST:

Alex Londono, Chief Shop Steward

Cosmo Cirillo, Town Administrator

Marcos Machuea, Shop Steward

APPENDIX A

Upon execution of this Agreement employees shall be paid in accordance with the following schedule

5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.	18.1938	\$ 17.9249 \$	5th Year from Hire Date
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%) 886.97 \$ 29,464.71 \$ 30,054.00 \$ 30,655.08 3.8874 \$ 14.1652 \$ 14.4485 \$ 14.7375 858.61 \$ 34,535.79 \$ 35,226.50 \$ 35,931.03 6.2776 \$ 16.6031 \$ 16.9352 \$ 17.2739 651.51 \$ 35,344.54 \$ 36,051.43 \$ 36,772.46 6.6587 \$ 16,9919 \$ 17.3318 \$ 17.6784 444.40 \$ 36,153.29 \$ 36,876.35 \$ 37,613.88 7.0399 \$ 36,983.90 \$ 37,723.58 \$ 38,478.05 7.4314 \$ 17.7800 \$ 38,548.50 \$ 38,3478.05 7.8126 \$ 37,792.64 \$ 38,548.50 \$ 39,319.47 7.8126 \$ 18.1688 \$ 18.9029	\$ 37,844.51	\$ 37,285,23	Step 6: Upon Compleition of
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%) 886.97 \$ 29,464.71 \$ 30,054.00 \$ 30,655.08 3.8874 \$ 14.1652 \$ 14.4485 \$ 14.7375 858.61 \$ 34,535.79 \$ 35,226.50 \$ 35,931.03 6.2776 \$ 16.6031 \$ 16.9352 \$ 17.2739 6.51.51 \$ 35,344.54 \$ 36,051.43 \$ 36,772.46 6.6587 \$ 16.9919 \$ 17.3318 \$ 17.6784 444.40 \$ 36,153.29 \$ 36,876.35 \$ 37,613.88 7.0399 \$ 17.3807 \$ 37,723.58 \$ 38,478.05 7.4314 \$ 17.7800 \$ 38,548.50 \$ 39,319.47	\$ 17.8126 \$	\$ 17.5494	4th Year from Hire Date
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%) 886.97 \$ 29,464.71 \$ 30,054.00 \$ 30,655.08 3.8874 \$ 14.1652 \$ 14.4485 \$ 14.7375 858.61 \$ 34,535.79 \$ 35,226.50 \$ 35,931.03 6.2776 \$ 16.6031 \$ 16.9352 \$ 17.2739 651.51 \$ 35,344.54 \$ 36,051.43 \$ 36,772.46 6.6587 \$ 16,9919 \$ 17.3318 \$ 17.6784 444.40 \$ 36,153.29 \$ 36,876.35 \$ 37,613.88 7.0399 \$ 17.3807 \$ 37,723.58 \$ 38,478.05 258.72 \$ 36,983.90 \$ 37,723.58 \$ 18.4984	\$ 37,051.61	\$ 36,504.05	Step 5: Upon Completion of
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%) 886.97 \$ 29,464.71 \$ 30,054.00 \$ 30,655.08 3.8874 \$ 14.1652 \$ 14.4485 \$ 14.7375 858.61 \$ 34,535.79 \$ 35,226.50 \$ 35,931.03 6.2776 \$ 16.6031 \$ 16.9352 \$ 17.2739 651.51 \$ 35,344.54 \$ 36,051.43 \$ 36,772.46 6.6587 \$ 16.9919 \$ 17.3318 \$ 17.6784 444.40 \$ 36,153.29 \$ 36,876.35 \$ 37,613.88 7.0399 \$ 17.3807 \$ 37,723.58 \$ 38,478.05	\$ 17.4314 5	\$ 17.1738	3rd Year from Hire Date
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%) 886.97 \$ 29,464.71 \$ 30,054.00 \$ 30,655.08 3.8874 \$ 14.1652 \$ 14.4485 \$ 14.7375 858.61 \$ 34,535.79 \$ 35,226.50 \$ 35,931.03 6.2776 \$ 16.6031 \$ 16.9352 \$ 17.2739 651.51 \$ 35,344.54 \$ 36,051.43 \$ 36,772.46 6.6587 \$ 16,9919 \$ 17.3318 \$ 17.6784 444.40 \$ 36,153.29 \$ 36,876.35 \$ 37,613.88 7.0399 \$ 17.3807 \$ 17.7283 \$ 18.0829	\$ 36,258.72	\$ 35,722.88	Step 4: Upon Completion of
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%) 886.97 \$ 29,464.71 \$ 30,054.00 \$ 30,655.08 3.8874 \$ 14.1652 \$ 14.4485 \$ 14.7375 858.61 \$ 34,535.79 \$ 35,226.50 \$ 35,931.03 6.2776 \$ 16.6031 \$ 16.9352 \$ 17.2739 651.51 \$ 35,344.54 \$ 36,051.43 \$ 36,772.46 6.6587 \$ 16.9919 \$ 17.3318 \$ 17.6784 444.40 \$ 36,153.29 \$ 36,876.35 \$ 37,613.88	\$ 17.0399	\$ 16.7881	2nd Year from Hire Date
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%) 886.97 \$ 29,464.71 \$ 30,054.00 \$ 30,655.08 3.8874 \$ 14.1652 \$ 14.4485 \$ 14.7375 858.61 \$ 34,535.79 \$ 35,226.50 \$ 35,931.03 6.2776 \$ 16.6031 \$ 16.9352 \$ 17.2739 651.51 \$ 35,344.54 \$ 36,772.46 6.6587 \$ 16,9919 \$ 17.3318 \$ 17.6784	\$ 35,444.40	\$ 34,920.59	Step 3: Upon Completion of
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%) 886.97 \$ 29,464.71 \$ 30,054.00 \$ 30,655.08 3.8874 \$ 14.1652 \$ 14.4485 \$ 14.7375 858.61 \$ 34,535.79 \$ 35,226.50 \$ 35,931.03 6.2776 \$ 16.6031 \$ 16.9352 \$ 17.2739 651.51 \$ 35,344.54 \$ 36,051.43 \$ 36,772.46	\$ 16.6587	\$ 16.4126	1st Year from Hire Date
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%) 886.97 \$ 29,464.71 \$ 30,054.00 \$ 30,655.08 3.8874 \$ 14.1652 \$ 14.4485 \$ 14.7375 858.61 \$ 34,535.79 \$ 35,226.50 \$ 35,931.03 6.2776 \$ 16.6031 \$ 16.9352 \$ 17.2739	\$ 34,651.51	\$ 34,139.42	Step 2: Upon Completion of
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%) 886.97 \$ 29,464.71 \$ 30,054.00 \$ 30,655.08 3.8874 \$ 14.1652 \$ 14.4485 \$ 14.7375 858.61 \$ 34,535.79 \$ 35,226.50 \$ 35,931.03	\$ 16.2776	\$ 16.0370	90 day Probationary Period
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%) 886.97 \$ 29,464.71 \$ 30,054.00 \$ 30,655.08 3.8874 \$ 14.1652 \$ 14.4485 \$ 14.7375	\$ 33,858.61	\$ 33,358.24	Step 1: Upon Completion of
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%) 886.97 \$ 29,464.71 \$ 30,054.00 \$ 30,655.08	\$ 13.8874	\$ 13.6822	
(1.5%) 1/1/2020 (2.0%) 1/1/2021 (2.0%) 1/1/2022 (2.0%)	\$ 28,886.97	\$ 28,460.07	Ilnon Hire
	1/1/2019 (1.5%)	1/1/2018 (1.5%)	
ive Effective Effective	Effective	Upon Execution	

only as to Part-Time Custodians and Part-time Park Care Keepers (Seasonal) hired after January 1, 2014 APPENDIX B*

Control of the Contro	The second secon	An exercise to the second seco	Control of the latest and the latest		
\$ 11.77	\$ 11.54 \$	\$ 11.32 \$	\$ 11.09	\$ 10.93 \$	Part-time Park Care Keepers (Seasonal)
\$ 12.02	\$ 11,78 \$	\$ 11.55 \$	\$ 11.32 \$	\$ 11.15 \$	Part-time Custodians
Effective 1/1/2022 (2.0%)	Effective 1/1/2021 (2.0%)	Effective 1/1/2020 (2.0%)	Upon Execution	Upon Execution 1/1/2018 (1.5%)	

^{*}Hourly Wages

TOWN OF GUTTENBERG COUNTY OF HUDSON, STATE OF NEW JERSEY

RESOLUTION# 32-2018

APPROVING EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF GUTTENBERG AND MEMBERS OF TEAMSTER LOCAL UNION NO. 11

WHEREAS, negotiations have taken place between the Town of Guttenberg and certain of its employees who are members of Teamsters Local Union No. 11; and

WHEREAS, said negotiations have resulted in a contract settlement which is in the best interests of the Town of Guttenberg; and

WHEREAS, an outline of the proposed settlement is attached hereto.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that since the agreement is being approved after December 31, 2017, the terms of this contact shall be retroactive as of January 1, 2018 and terminating on December 31, 2022.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Guttenberg that the Mayor and Town Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to sign the contract between the Town of Guttenberg and Local 11.

RESOLUTION#32-2018 REGULAR MEETING JANUARY 22, 2018

On a motion by Councilperson: Habermann

Seconded by Councilperson: Florio

2	Ayes	Nays	Absent	Abstain
Councilperson Caso	X			
Councilperson Delafuente	X			
Councilperson Florio	X			
Councilperson Fundora			X	
Councilperson Habermann	X			
Mayor Zitt	X			

I, Alberto Cabrera, Register Municipal Clerk for the Town of Guttenberg do hereby certify this to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Mayor and Council at a meeting held on January 22, 2018.

Attest:

January 23, 2018

Aborto Cabrera, R.M.C.

Town of Guttenberg